

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

First Regular Session, 102nd GENERAL ASSEMBLY

THIRTIETH DAY, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 28, 2023

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

Speaker Plocher in the Chair.

Prayer by Reverend Monsignor Robert A. Kurwicky, Chaplain.

“He that giveth, let him do it with simplicity; he that ruleth with diligence; he that showeth mercy with cheerfulness.” (Romans 12:8)

O God, our Protector, in whose love is our life, in whose service is our strength, and in whose will is our work, grant us increasing strength that we may work unceasingly for the benefit of our great state and the wellbeing of our citizens.

Save us from discord and disunity, from pride and prejudice, from vice and violence. Fashion us into a people united in purpose so to promote justice and freedom.

May the spirit of wisdom live in all our hearts and minds so we may make political decisions daringly, plan procedures patiently, and live with love and light in our lives and votes.

And the House says, “Amen!”

The Pledge of Allegiance to the flag was recited.

The Journal of the twenty-ninth day was approved as printed by the following vote:

AYES: 154

Adams	Allen	Amato	Anderson	Appelbaum
Atchison	Aune	Baker	Banderman	Bangert
Baringer	Barnes	Billington	Black	Boggs
Bonacker	Bosley	Boyd	Bromley	Brown 149
Brown 16	Brown 27	Brown 87	Buchheit-Courtway	Burger
Burnett	Burton	Busick	Butz	Casteel
Chappell	Christ	Christofanelli	Clemens	Coleman
Collins	Cook	Crossley	Cupps	Davidson
Davis	Deaton	Diehl	Dinkins	Doll
Ealy	Evans	Falkner	Farnan	Fogle
Fountain Henderson	Francis	Gallick	Gragg	Gray
Gregory	Griffith	Haden	Haffner	Haley
Hardwick	Hausman	Hein	Henderson	Hicks
Hinman	Houx	Hovis	Hudson	Hurlbert
Ingle	Johnson 12	Johnson 23	Jones	Justus
Kalberloh	Keathley	Kelley 127	Kelly 141	Knight
Lavender	Lewis 25	Lewis 6	Lonsdale	Lovasco

Mackey	Mann	Marquart	Matthiesen	Mayhew
McGaugh	McGirl	McMullen	Merideth	Mosley
Murphy	Myers	Nurrenbern	O'Donnell	Oehlerking
Owen	Parker	Patterson	Perkins	Peters
Phifer	Plank	Pollitt	Pouche	Proudie
Quade	Reedy	Reuter	Richey	Riggs
Riley	Roberts	Sander	Sassmann	Sauls
Schnelting	Schulte	Schwadron	Seitz	Sharp 37
Sharpe 4	Shields	Smith 155	Smith 163	Smith 46
Sparks	Stacy	Steinhoff	Stephens	Stinnett
Strickler	Taylor 48	Taylor 84	Thomas	Thompson
Titus	Toalson Reisch	Van Schoiack	Veit	Voss
Waller	Walsh Moore	Weber	West	Wilson
Woods	Wright	Young	Mr. Speaker	

NOES: 000

PRESENT: 003

Bland Manlove Unsicker Windham

ABSENT WITH LEAVE: 006

Aldridge Byrnes Copeland Morse Nickson-Clark
Terry

VACANCIES: 000

HOUSE RESOLUTIONS

Representative Nurrenbern offered House Resolution No. 694.

INTRODUCTION OF HOUSE JOINT RESOLUTIONS

The following House Joint Resolution was read the first time and copies ordered printed:

HJR 65, introduced by Representative Schwadron, relating to the general assembly.

INTRODUCTION OF HOUSE BILLS

The following House Bills were read the first time and copies ordered printed:

HB 1293, introduced by Representative Hardwick, relating to the renewable energy standard.

HB 1294, introduced by Representative Schwadron, relating to complaints of ethical misconduct against persons licensed to practice law.

HB 1295, introduced by Representative West, relating to meetings of governing bodies of political subdivisions.

HB 1296, introduced by Representative Smith (155), relating to inspections of certain facilities.

HB 1297, introduced by Representative Cupps, relating to solar energy property tax credits.

HB 1298, introduced by Representative McMullen, relating to incentives for converting a business to produce certain chemicals, gases, metals, and minerals.

HB 1299, introduced by Representative McMullen, relating to residency of congressional representatives, with penalty provisions.

HB 1300, introduced by Representative Voss, relating to new drivers, with a penalty provision.

HB 1301, introduced by Representative Veit, relating to the personal privacy protection act, with an emergency clause.

HB 1302, introduced by Representative Riggs, relating to the highways and transportation commission.

HB 1303, introduced by Representative Nurrenbern, relating to public safety, with penalty provisions.

HB 1304, introduced by Representative Weber, relating to senior rental housing projects.

HB 1305, introduced by Representative Coleman, relating to utility discontinuance moratoriums.

HB 1306, introduced by Representative Keathley, relating to tax increment financing.

HB 1307, introduced by Representative Oehlerking, relating to county clerks.

HB 1308, introduced by Representative Myers, relating to sex and human trafficking awareness training, with penalty provisions.

HB 1309, introduced by Representative Sander, relating to fire protection, with penalty provisions.

HB 1310, introduced by Representative Smith (163), relating to income tax.

HB 1311, introduced by Representative Sauls, relating to confidential informants, with a penalty provision.

HB 1312, introduced by Representative Sauls, relating to death investigations.

HB 1313, introduced by Representative Sauls, relating to alternative treatment options for veterans.

HB 1314, introduced by Representative Windham, relating to motor vehicles abandoned by persons under arrest.

HB 1315, introduced by Representative Windham, relating to appropriations to land grant universities.

HB 1316, introduced by Representative Windham, relating to school curriculum.

HB 1317, introduced by Representative Windham, relating to eligibility for the access Missouri financial assistance program.

HB 1318, introduced by Representative Windham, relating to the access Missouri financial assistance program.

HB 1319, introduced by Representative Windham, relating to financial assistance for higher education students.

HB 1320, introduced by Representative Windham, relating to state funding for higher education costs.

HB 1321, introduced by Representative Windham, relating to higher education reports.

HB 1322, introduced by Representative Windham, relating to student representatives of public institutions of higher education.

HB 1323, introduced by Representative Windham, relating to state funding for higher education costs.

HB 1324, introduced by Representative Windham, relating to the publishing of booking photographs.

HB 1325, introduced by Representative Windham, relating to Pennytown day.

HB 1326, introduced by Representative Steinhoff, relating to teacher instructional planning time.

HB 1327, introduced by Representative Allen, relating to voters who are visually impaired.

HB 1328, introduced by Representative Gregory, relating to the regulation of certain intoxicating products.

HB 1329, introduced by Representative Plank, relating to net metering.

HB 1330, introduced by Representative Smith (155), relating to payments for prescription drugs, with penalty provisions.

HB 1331, introduced by Representative Sauls, relating to freelance workers, with penalty provisions.

HB 1332, introduced by Representative Sparks, relating to taxation.

HB 1333, introduced by Representative Sparks, relating to the fiduciary duties for investments of public retirement systems.

HB 1334, introduced by Representative Van Schoiack, relating to public school administrator evaluations.

HB 1335, introduced by Representative Kelly (141), relating to a tax credit for the care of certain children.

HB 1336, introduced by Representative Brown (16), relating to international baccalaureate examinations.

HB 1337, introduced by Representative Brown (16), relating to skylight safety.

HB 1338, introduced by Representative McGaugh, relating to all-terrain vehicles, with penalty provisions.

HB 1339, introduced by Representative Christ, relating to solar energy property tax credits.

HB 1340, introduced by Representative Christ, relating to money transmission, with penalty provisions.

HB 1341, introduced by Representative Unsicker, relating to reports of community and school safety concerns.

HB 1342, introduced by Representative Unsicker, relating to enforcement of wage payments, with penalty provisions.

HB 1343, introduced by Representative Unsicker, relating to a tax credit for contributions to certain child advocacy organizations.

HB 1344, introduced by Representative Allen, relating to minimum prison terms.

HB 1345, introduced by Representative Hardwick, relating to a work opportunity tax credit.

HB 1346, introduced by Representative Gregory, relating to compensation of student athletes.

HB 1347, introduced by Representative Gregory, relating to medical mandates in educational institutions, with penalty provisions.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following House Concurrent Resolution was read the second time:

HCR 19, relating to raising awareness of kidney disease.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILLS

The following House Bills were read the second time:

HB 1275, relating to automated external defibrillators.

HB 1276, relating to the designation of a bridge.

HB 1277, relating to firearms, with penalty provisions.

HB 1278, relating to residential care facilities.

HB 1279, relating to licensure of physicians.

HB 1280, relating to the St. Louis regional crime and policing commission.

HB 1281, relating to the rights of public school students.

HB 1282, relating to groundwater monitoring.

HB 1283, relating to the public domain preservation act.

HB 1284, relating to social workers.

HB 1285, relating to restitution for individuals who are actually innocent.

HB 1286, relating to voluntary nonopioid directive forms, with penalty provisions.

HB 1287, relating to tuition for military personnel.

HB 1288, relating to applications for MO HealthNet benefits.

HB 1289, relating to the retention of student education records.

HB 1290, relating to workers' compensation benefits.

HB 1291, relating to the summer camp safety task force.

HB 1292, relating to summer camps, with penalty provisions.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILLS

The following Senate Bill was read the second time:

SS SCS SBs 94, 52, 57, 58 & 67, relating to tax credits for the production of certain entertainment, with an effective date for a certain section.

PERFECTION OF HOUSE BILLS

HS HCS HB 186, relating to ballot language relating to taxation, was taken up by Representative Murphy.

On motion of Representative Murphy, the title of **HS HCS HB 186** was agreed to.

On motion of Representative Murphy, **HS HCS HB 186** was adopted.

On motion of Representative Murphy, **HS HCS HB 186** was ordered perfected and printed.

HCS HB 253, relating to admission of nonresident pupils, was placed on the Informal Calendar.

HCS HB 655, relating to property and casualty insurance, was taken up by Representative Knight.

On motion of Representative Knight, the title of **HCS HB 655** was agreed to.

On motion of Representative Knight, **HCS HB 655** was adopted.

On motion of Representative Knight, **HCS HB 655** was ordered perfected and printed.

HCS HB 154, relating to a sales tax exemption for certain medical devices, was taken up by Representative Thomas.

Representative Thomas moved that the title of **HCS HB 154** be agreed to.

Representative Lavender offered **House Amendment No. 1**.

House Amendment No. 1

AMEND House Committee Substitute for House Bill No. 154, In the Title, Lines 2-3, by deleting the phrase "a sales tax exemption for certain medical devices" and inserting in lieu thereof the phrase "sales tax exemptions"; and

Further amend said bill by amending the title, enacting clause, and intersectional references accordingly.

House Amendment No. 1 was withdrawn.

Representative Thomas again moved that the title **HCS HB 154** be agreed to.

Which motion was adopted.

Representative Sander offered **House Amendment No. 2**.

House Amendment No. 2

AMEND House Committee Substitute for House Bill No. 154, Page 5, Section 144.030, Line 140, by inserting after the word "supplies" the phrase ", **prescription eye glasses, contact lenses,**"; and

Further amend said bill by amending the title, enacting clause, and intersectional references accordingly.

Representative Sander moved that **House Amendment No. 2** be adopted.

Which motion was defeated by the following vote, the ayes and noes having been demanded by Representative Sander:

AYES: 060

Anderson	Appelbaum	Aune	Bangert	Barnes
Bland Manlove	Boyd	Brown 27	Burger	Burnett
Butz	Chappell	Christofanelli	Collins	Crossley
Davis	Ealy	Farnan	Fogle	Gray
Haley	Hardwick	Hausman	Hein	Ingle
Johnson 12	Johnson 23	Keathley	Lavender	Lewis 25
Lonsdale	Lovasco	Mann	Matthiesen	Mayhew
McMullen	Mosley	Murphy	Nurrenbern	Oehlerking
Perkins	Phifer	Plank	Pollitt	Proudie
Quade	Sander	Schwadron	Sharp 37	Stacy
Steinhoff	Strickler	Taylor 84	Titus	Toalson Reisch
Weber	West	Windham	Woods	Young

NOES: 084

Adams	Allen	Amato	Atchison	Baker
Banderman	Baringer	Billington	Black	Bonacker
Brown 149	Brown 16	Buchheit-Courtway	Busick	Casteel
Christ	Coleman	Cook	Copeland	Cupps
Davidson	Dinkins	Doll	Evans	Falkner
Fountain Henderson	Francis	Gallick	Gragg	Gregory
Griffith	Haden	Haffner	Henderson	Hicks
Hinman	Houx	Hovis	Hudson	Hurlbert
Jones	Justus	Kalberloh	Kelley 127	Kelly 141
Knight	Lewis 6	Marquart	McGaugh	McGirl
Myers	O'Donnell	Owen	Parker	Patterson
Peters	Pouche	Reedy	Reuter	Richey
Riggs	Riley	Roberts	Sassmann	Schnelting
Schulte	Seitz	Sharpe 4	Shields	Smith 155
Smith 163	Sparks	Stephens	Stinnett	Taylor 48
Thomas	Thompson	Van Schoiack	Veit	Voss
Waller	Wilson	Wright	Mr. Speaker	

PRESENT: 000

ABSENT WITH LEAVE: 019

Aldridge	Boggs	Bosley	Bromley	Brown 87
Burton	Byrnes	Clemens	Deaton	Diehl
Mackey	Merideth	Morse	Nickson-Clark	Sauls
Smith 46	Terry	Unsicker	Walsh Moore	

VACANCIES: 000

On motion of Representative Thomas, **HCS HB 154** was adopted.

On motion of Representative Thomas, **HCS HB 154** was ordered perfected and printed.

HCS HBs 575 & 910, relating to breast examinations, was taken up by Representative Shields.

On motion of Representative Shields, the title of **HCS HBs 575 & 910** was agreed to.

Representative Thomas assumed the Chair.

On motion of Representative Shields, **HCS HBs 575 & 910** was adopted.

On motion of Representative Shields, **HCS HBs 575 & 910** was ordered perfected and printed.

Speaker Plocher resumed the Chair.

HCS HB 715, relating to educational costs of children, was taken up by Representative Kelly (141).

On motion of Representative Kelly (141), the title of **HCS HB 715** was agreed to.

On motion of Representative Kelly (141), **HCS HB 715** was adopted.

On motion of Representative Kelly (141), **HCS HB 715** was ordered perfected and printed.

On motion of Representative Patterson, the House recessed until 2:15 p.m.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The hour of recess having expired, the House was called to order by Speaker Plocher.

PERFECTION OF HOUSE BILLS - INFORMAL

HCS#2 HB 713, relating to motor vehicle assessments, was taken up by Representative Reedy.

On motion of Representative Reedy, the title of **HCS#2 HB 713** was agreed to.

Representative Reedy offered **House Amendment No. 1**.

House Amendment No. 1

AMEND House Committee Substitute No. 2 for House Bill No. 713, Page 4, Section 137.115, Line 128, by inserting after the word "price." the following:

"For the purposes of this subsection, the term "motor vehicles" means trucks, automobiles, motorcycles, boats, trailers, and other motor vehicles required to be registered and titled pursuant to the provisions of the motor vehicle and registration laws of this state. The term "motor vehicles" shall include farm tractors and farm machinery including tractors or machinery designed for off-road use but capable of movement on roads at low speeds."; and

Further amend said bill by amending the title, enacting clause, and intersectional references accordingly.

On motion of Representative Reedy, **House Amendment No. 1** was adopted.

Representative Hudson offered **House Amendment No. 2**.

House Amendment No. 2

AMEND House Committee Substitute No. 2 for House Bill No. 713, Pages 4-5, Section 137.115, Lines 117-137, by deleting said lines and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

"9. For the tax year ending on or before December 31, 2023, the assessor of each county and each city not within a county shall use ~~[the trade-in value published in the October issue of]~~ **a nationally recognized automotive trade publication such as** the National Automobile Dealers' Association Official Used Car Guide, **Kelley Blue Book,** or ~~[its successor publication]~~ **Edmunds, or other similar publication** as the recommended guide of information for determining the true value of motor vehicles described in such publication. **The state tax commission shall determine which publication shall be used. The assessor of each county and each city not within a county shall use the trade-in value published in the current or any of the three immediately previous years' October issue of the publication selected by the state tax commission.** The assessor shall not use a value that is greater than the average trade-in value in determining the true value of the motor vehicle without performing a physical inspection of the motor vehicle. For vehicles two years old or newer from a vehicle's model year, the assessor may use a value other than average without performing a physical inspection of the motor vehicle.

10. For all tax years beginning on or after January 1, 2024, the assessor of each county and each city not within a county shall use the manufacturer's suggested retail price for all manufactured motor vehicles as acquired annually by the state tax commission for the original value in money of all motor vehicle assessment valuations. **For the purposes of this subsection, the term "original value in money" means the manufacturer's suggested retail price. The following fifteen-year depreciation schedule shall be applied to each manufacturer's suggested retail price to develop the annual and historical valuation guide for all motor vehicles. The values shall be delivered to each software vendor not later than November fifteenth annually and vendors shall have the values in place by December fifteenth annually for use in the next assessment year.** In the absence of a listing for a particular motor vehicle in such publication, the assessor shall use such information or publications which in the assessor's judgment will fairly estimate the ~~[true]~~ **original value in money of the motor vehicle[-] and the assessor shall apply the appropriate depreciation from the table as follows:";** and

Further amend said bill and section, Pages 6-8, by renumbering subsequent subsections accordingly; and

Further amend said bill, Page 8, Section B, Lines 1-2, by deleting said section and lines and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

"Section B. Because immediate action is necessary to protect taxpayers from inflated values and rapidly increasing prices, the repeal and reenactment of section 137.115 of section A of this act is deemed necessary for the immediate preservation of the public health, welfare, peace, and safety, and is hereby declared to be an emergency act within the meaning of the constitution, and the repeal and reenactment of section 137.115 of section A of this act shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and approval."; and

Further amend said bill by amending the title, enacting clause, and intersectional references accordingly.

On motion of Representative Hudson, **House Amendment No. 2** was adopted.

On motion of Representative Reedy, **HCS#2 HB 713, as amended**, was adopted.

On motion of Representative Reedy, **HCS#2 HB 713, as amended**, was ordered perfected and printed.

HCS HBs 903, 465, 430 & 499, relating to foreign ownership of real property, was taken up by Representative Haffner.

On motion of Representative Haffner, the title of **HCS HBs 903, 465, 430 & 499** was agreed to.

Representative Haffner offered **House Amendment No. 1**.

House Amendment No. 1

AMEND House Committee Substitute for House Bill Nos. 903, 465, 430 & 499, Page 1, Section 442.566, Lines 13-14, by deleting said lines and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

"(3) [~~Director~~, the director of the Missouri department of agriculture;
(4)] "Family members" includes all persons within the ninth degree of consanguinity,"; and

Further amend said bill, page, and section, Line 16, by deleting the number "(5)" and inserting in lieu thereof the number "[~~(5)~~] (4)"; and

Further amend said bill and section, Page 2, Line 23, by deleting the number "(6)" and inserting in lieu thereof the number "[~~(6)~~] (5)"; and

Further amend said bill, Page 4, Section 442.571, Line 67, by inserting after all of said section and line the following:

"442.576. 1. If the [~~director~~] **attorney general** finds that an alien or foreign business or an agent, trustee, or other fiduciary therefor has acquired agricultural land in Missouri in violation of sections 442.560 to 442.592, or the land ceases to be used for nonagricultural purposes under section 442.591, he or she shall [~~report the violation to the attorney general.~~

~~_____ 2. The attorney general shall] institute an action in the circuit court of Cole County or the circuit court in any county in which agricultural land owned by the alien or foreign business, agent, trustee or other fiduciary, alleged to have violated sections 442.560 to 442.592, is located.~~

[~~3-~~] **2.** The attorney general shall file a notice of the pendency of the action with the recorder of deeds of each county in which any portion of such agricultural lands is located. If the court finds that the lands in question have been acquired in violation of sections 442.560 to 442.592, it shall enter an order so declaring and shall file a copy of the order with the recorder of deeds of each county in which any portion of the agricultural lands is located. The court shall order the owner to divest [~~himself~~] **from ownership** of the agricultural land. The owner must comply with the order within two years. The two-year limitation period shall be a covenant running with the title to the land against any alien grantee or assignee. Provided, however, an incorporated foreign business must divest itself of agricultural land within the minimum time required by Article XI, Section 5, of the Missouri Constitution. Any agricultural lands not divested within the time prescribed shall be ordered sold by the court at a public sale in the manner prescribed by law for the foreclosure of a mortgage on real estate for default in payment.

442.591. The restrictions set forth in sections 442.560 to 442.592 shall not apply to agricultural land or any interest therein acquired by an alien or foreign business for immediate or potential use in nonfarming purposes. An alien or foreign business may hold such agricultural land in such acreage as may be necessary to ~~its~~ **such alien's or foreign business's** nonfarm business operation; provided, however, that pending the development of agricultural land for nonfarm purposes, such land may not be used for farming except under lease to a family farm unit; a family farm corporation defined in section 350.010; an alien or foreign business which has filed with the ~~director~~ **secretary of state and the attorney general** under sections 442.560 to 442.592; or except when controlled through ownership, options, leaseholds or other agreements by a corporation which has entered into an agreement with the United States of America pursuant to the New Community Act of 1968 (Title IV of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1969, 42 U.S.C. 3901-3914), as amended, or a subsidiary or assignee of such a corporation.

442.592. 1. For the purposes of this section, the term "foreign person" means:

- (1) An individual who is not a citizen of the United States and who has not been lawfully admitted to the United States for permanent residence under the Immigration and Nationality Act or who has not been made a citizen by an act of Congress;
- (2) An entity, other than an individual or a government, that is created or organized under the laws of a nation other than the United States, or that has its principal place of business in a foreign nation;
- (3) An entity, other than an individual or a government, that is created or organized under the laws of the United States or of some state, territory, trusteeship or protectorate of the United States and that, as defined in regulations to be prescribed by the ~~director~~ **secretary of state**, is substantially controlled by individuals referred to in subdivision (1) of this subsection, entities referred to in subdivision (2) of this subsection, governments of foreign nations, or any combination of such individuals, entities, or governments; ~~and~~
- (4) **A foreign business, as defined in section 442.566; and**
- (5) A government of a foreign nation.

2. ~~Any foreign person who holds any interest (including leaseholds of ten or more years and beneficial interests in the agricultural land under contracts of sale or similar arrangements), other than a security interest, in agricultural land on September 28, 1979, shall submit, or have a designated agent submit, a report to the director of agriculture not later than sixty days after September 28, 1979; provided, however, that no reporting requirement attaches to any holding by an alien or a foreign person or a foreign business of an interest in agricultural land for the extraction, refining, processing or transportation of oil, gas, coal or lignite. Such report shall be submitted in such manner as the director shall prescribe by regulation and shall contain:~~

- ~~_____ (1) The legal name and address of the foreign person;~~
- ~~_____ (2) In any case in which the foreign person is an individual, the citizenship of the foreign person;~~
- ~~_____ (3) In any case in which the foreign person is not an individual or a government:~~
 - ~~_____ (a) The nation in which the foreign person is created or organized;~~
 - ~~_____ (b) The principal place of business of the foreign person;~~
 - ~~_____ (c) The legal name and address of each person who holds a substantial interest (as defined in regulations to be prescribed by the director) in the foreign person and, in any case in which the holder of such an interest is an individual, the citizenship of the holder and, in any case in which the holder of such an interest is not an individual or a government, the nation in which the holder is created or organized and the principal place of business of the holder;~~
- ~~_____ (4) The type of interest in the agricultural land that is held by the foreign person;~~
- ~~_____ (5) A legal description of the agricultural land, including the county in which the land is located and the total acreage involved;~~
- ~~_____ (6) The date of acquisition of the interest and the purchase price paid for, or any other consideration given for, the interest;~~
- ~~_____ (7) A declaration of the type of agricultural activity engaged in by the reporting foreign person;~~
- ~~_____ (8) In the case where any foreign person holds an interest in agricultural land for the purposes outlined in section 442.591, a declaration of intent as to the intended use of the land.~~

~~_____ 3. No rule or portion of a rule promulgated under the authority of sections 442.560 to 442.591 shall become effective unless it has been promulgated pursuant to the provisions of section 536.024] The secretary of state may promulgate all necessary rules and regulations for the administration of this section. Any rule or portion of a rule, as that term is defined in section 536.010, that is created under the authority delegated in this section shall become effective only if it complies with and is subject to all of the provisions of chapter 536 and, if applicable, section 536.028. This section and chapter 536 are nonseverable and if any of the powers vested with the general assembly pursuant to chapter 536 to review, to delay the effective date, or to disapprove and annul a rule are subsequently held unconstitutional, then the grant of rulemaking authority and any rule proposed or adopted after August 28, 2023, shall be invalid and void.~~

[4-] 3. Any foreign person who acquires or transfers any interest (including leaseholds of ten years or more and beneficial interests in the agricultural land under contracts of sale or similar arrangements), other than a security interest, in agricultural land shall submit, or have a designated agent submit, a report to the ~~[director]~~ **secretary of state and the attorney general** not later than thirty days after the date of such acquisition or transfer; provided, however, that no reporting requirement attaches to an acquisition or transfer by an alien or a foreign person or a foreign business of an interest in agricultural land for the extraction, refining, processing, or transportation of oil, gas, coal or lignite. Such report shall be submitted in such manner as the ~~[director]~~ **secretary of state** shall prescribe by regulation and shall contain:

- (1) The legal name and address of the foreign person;
- (2) In any case in which the foreign person is an individual, the citizenship of the foreign person;
- (3) In any case in which the foreign person is not an individual or a government:
 - (a) The nation in which the foreign person is created or organized;
 - (b) The principal place of business of the foreign person;
 - (c) The legal name and address of each person who holds a substantial interest (as defined in regulations to be prescribed by the ~~[director]~~ **secretary of state**) in the foreign person and, in any case in which the holder of such an interest is an individual, the citizenship of the holder and, in any case in which the holder of such an interest is not an individual or a government, the nation in which the holder is created or organized and the principal place of business of the holder;
- (4) The type of interest in the agricultural land that is acquired or transferred by the foreign person;
- (5) A legal description of the agricultural land including the county in which the land is located and the total acreage involved;
- (6) The purchase price paid or received for, or any other consideration given or received for, the interest;
- (7) In any case in which the foreign person transfers the interest, the legal name and the address of the person to whom the interest is transferred, and
 - (a) In any case in which the transferee is an individual, the citizenship of the transferee; and
 - (b) In any case in which the transferee is not an individual or a government, the nation in which the transferee is created or organized and the principal place of business of the transferee;
- (8) A declaration of the type of agricultural activity engaged in by the reporting foreign person;
- (9) In the case where any foreign person acquires an interest in agricultural land for the purposes outlined in section 442.591, a declaration of intent as to the intended use of the land.

~~[5. The director may promulgate rules and regulations pertaining to the form and content of reports required by this section; the procedures for filing such reports; and the analysis and distribution of findings and determinations based on the reports required by this section.~~

~~6-] 4. (1) The [director] secretary of state, in consultation with the attorney general, shall:~~

- (a) Analyze the information obtained under this section and determine the effects of foreign persons acquiring, transferring and holding agricultural land, particularly the effects of such acquisitions, transfers and holdings on family farms and rural communities; and
 - (b) Transmit to the governor and each house of the general assembly a report on the ~~[director's]~~ findings and conclusions regarding each analysis and determination made under paragraph (a) above;
- (2) An analysis and determination shall be made, and a report on the ~~[director's]~~ findings and conclusions regarding such analysis and determination transmitted[;]
- ~~(a) With respect to information obtained by the director under this section during the six-month period following September 28, 1979, within nine months after such date;~~
 - ~~(b) With respect to information obtained by the director under this section during the twelve-month period following September 28, 1979, within fifteen months after such date; and~~
 - ~~(c) With respect to each calendar year following the twelve-month period referred to in paragraph (b);] within ninety days after the end of such calendar year.~~

~~[7-] 5. Any foreign person who fails to file a report required under the provisions of this section is liable to the state in civil penalty. The civil penalty shall be determined by the circuit court in an amount not to exceed twenty-five percent of the fair market value of the interest in agricultural land with respect to which the violations occurred on the date of the assessment of the penalty. The attorney general shall recover the amount of any civil penalty assessed in a civil action in the circuit court in the county in which any part of the land involved is located."; and~~

Further amend said bill by amending the title, enacting clause, and intersectional references accordingly.

Representative O'Donnell offered **House Amendment No. 1 to House Amendment No. 1.**

House Amendment No. 1
to
House Amendment No. 1

AMEND House Amendment No. 1 to House Committee Substitute for House Bill Nos. 903, 465, 430 & 499, Page 1, Line 11, by inserting after all of said line the following:

"Further amend said bill and page, Section 442.571, Lines 4-5, by deleting all of said lines and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

"agricultural [~~acreage~~] **land** in this state exceeds **one-half of** one percent of the total aggregate agricultural [~~acreage~~] **land** in this state. A sale or transfer of any agricultural land in this state shall"; and"; and

Further amend said bill by amending the title, enacting clause, and intersectional references accordingly.

On motion of Representative O'Donnell, **House Amendment No. 1 to House Amendment No. 1** was adopted.

Representative Francis offered **House Amendment No. 2 to House Amendment No. 1.**

House Amendment No. 2
to
House Amendment No. 1

AMEND House Amendment No. 1 to House Committee Substitute for House Bill Nos. 903, 465, 430 & 499, Page 1, Line 11, by inserting after all of said line the following:

"Further amend said bill and page, Section 442.571, Line 10, by inserting after the word "**finalized.**" the following:

"**The attorney general shall review such sale or transfer and, within thirty days of receipt, approve or reject such transaction. If the attorney general does not take action on such sale or transfer within thirty days, the transaction shall be deemed to meet the requirements of this section.**"; and"; and

Further amend said bill by amending the title, enacting clause, and intersectional references accordingly.

On motion of Representative Francis, **House Amendment No. 2 to House Amendment No. 1** was adopted.

On motion of Representative Haffner, **House Amendment No. 1, as amended**, was adopted.

Representative Sander offered **House Amendment No. 2.**

House Amendment No. 2

AMEND House Committee Substitute for House Bill Nos. 903, 465, 430 & 499, Page 4, Section 442.571, Line 67, by inserting after all of said section and line the following:

"**Section 1. No alien or entity in which any alien or foreign business, as defined in section 442.566, owns interest shall receive any agriculturally-related tax credit from the state of Missouri.**"; and

Further amend said bill by amending the title, enacting clause, and intersectional references accordingly.

Representative Van Schoiack raised a point of order that **House Amendment No. 2** amends previously amended material.

The Chair ruled the point of order not well taken.

Representative O'Donnell offered **House Amendment No. 1 to House Amendment No. 2.**

*House Amendment No. 1
to
House Amendment No. 2*

AMEND House Amendment No. 2 to House Committee Substitute for House Bill Nos. 903, 465, 430 & 499, Page 1, Line 5, by inserting after the word "Missouri." the following:

"The provisions of this section shall apply only to aliens or entities from countries that do not allow American citizens or entities to own land in such foreign countries."; and

Further amend said bill by amending the title, enacting clause, and intersectional references accordingly.

House Amendment No. 2 was withdrawn.

Representative Weber offered **House Amendment No. 3.**

House Amendment No. 3

AMEND House Committee Substitute for House Bill Nos. 903, 465, 430 & 499, Page 4, Section 442.571, Line 67, by inserting after all of said line the following:

"(4) Nothing in this subsection shall prohibit aliens lawfully present in the United States holding an immigrant visa issued under 8 U.S.C. Section 1101 et. seq., as amended, from acquiring, by grant, purchase, devise, or descent, real property except agricultural land."; and

Further amend said bill by amending the title, enacting clause, and intersectional references accordingly.

Representative Patterson moved the previous question.

Which motion was adopted by the following vote:

AYES: 105

Allen	Amato	Atchison	Baker	Banderman
Billington	Black	Boggs	Bonacker	Boyd
Bromley	Brown 149	Brown 16	Buchheit-Courtway	Burger
Busick	Byrnes	Casteel	Christ	Christofanelli
Coleman	Cook	Copeland	Cupps	Davidson
Davis	Deaton	Diehl	Dinkins	Evans
Falkner	Farnan	Francis	Gallick	Gragg
Gregory	Griffith	Haden	Haffner	Haley
Hardwick	Hausman	Henderson	Hicks	Hinman

Houx	Hovis	Hudson	Hurlbert	Jones
Justus	Kalberloh	Keathley	Kelley 127	Kelly 141
Knight	Lewis 6	Lonsdale	Lovasco	Marquart
Matthiesen	Mayhew	McGirl	McMullen	Murphy
Myers	O'Donnell	Oehlerking	Owen	Parker
Patterson	Perkins	Peters	Pollitt	Pouche
Reedy	Reuter	Richey	Riggs	Riley
Roberts	Sander	Sassmann	Schnelting	Schulte
Schwadron	Seitz	Shields	Smith 155	Smith 163
Sparks	Stacy	Stinnett	Taylor 48	Thomas
Thompson	Titus	Van Schoiack	Veit	Voss
Waller	West	Wilson	Wright	Mr. Speaker

NOES: 042

Adams	Anderson	Aune	Barnes	Bland Manlove
Brown 27	Burnett	Burton	Butz	Clemens
Crossley	Doll	Ealy	Fogle	Fountain Henderson
Gray	Hein	Ingle	Johnson 12	Johnson 23
Lavender	Lewis 25	Mackey	Mann	Merideth
Mosley	Nurrenbern	Phifer	Plank	Proudie
Quade	Sauls	Sharp 37	Smith 46	Steinhoff
Strickler	Taylor 84	Terry	Unsicker	Weber
Woods	Young			

PRESENT: 000

ABSENT WITH LEAVE: 016

Aldridge	Appelbaum	Bangert	Baringer	Bosley
Brown 87	Chappell	Collins	McGaugh	Morse
Nickson-Clark	Sharpe 4	Stephens	Toalson Reich	Walsh Moore
Windham				

VACANCIES: 000

Representative Weber moved that **House Amendment No. 3** be adopted.

Which motion was defeated.

Representative Patterson moved the previous question.

Which motion was adopted by the following vote:

AYES: 107

Allen	Amato	Atchison	Baker	Banderman
Billington	Black	Boggs	Bonacker	Boyd
Bromley	Brown 149	Brown 16	Buchheit-Courtway	Burger
Busick	Byrnes	Casteel	Christ	Christofanelli
Coleman	Cook	Copeland	Cupps	Davidson
Davis	Deaton	Diehl	Dinkins	Evans
Falkner	Farnan	Francis	Gallick	Gragg
Gregory	Griffith	Haden	Haffner	Haley
Hardwick	Hausman	Henderson	Hicks	Hinman
Houx	Hovis	Hudson	Hurlbert	Jones

Justus	Kalberloh	Keathley	Kelley 127	Kelly 141
Knight	Lewis 6	Lonsdale	Lovasco	Marquart
Matthiesen	Mayhew	McGaugh	McGill	McMullen
Murphy	Myers	O'Donnell	Oehlerking	Owen
Parker	Patterson	Perkins	Pollitt	Pouche
Reedy	Reuter	Richey	Riggs	Riley
Roberts	Sander	Sassmann	Schnelting	Schulte
Schwadron	Seitz	Sharpe 4	Shields	Smith 155
Smith 163	Sparks	Stacy	Stinnett	Taylor 48
Thomas	Thompson	Titus	Toalson Reisch	Van Schoiack
Veit	Voss	Waller	West	Wilson
Wright	Mr. Speaker			

NOES: 042

Adams	Anderson	Aune	Barnes	Bland Manlove
Brown 27	Burnett	Burton	Butz	Clemens
Crossley	Doll	Ealy	Fogle	Fountain Henderson
Gray	Hein	Ingle	Johnson 12	Johnson 23
Lavender	Lewis 25	Mackey	Mann	Merideth
Mosley	Nurrenbern	Phifer	Plank	Proudie
Quade	Sauls	Sharp 37	Smith 46	Steinhoff
Strickler	Taylor 84	Terry	Unsicker	Weber
Woods	Young			

PRESENT: 000

ABSENT WITH LEAVE: 014

Aldridge	Appelbaum	Bangert	Baringer	Bosley
Brown 87	Chappell	Collins	Morse	Nickson-Clark
Peters	Stephens	Walsh Moore	Windham	

VACANCIES: 000

On motion of Representative Haffner, **HCS HBs 903, 465, 430 & 499, as amended**, was adopted.

On motion of Representative Haffner, **HCS HBs 903, 465, 430 & 499, as amended**, was ordered perfected and printed.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Committee on Children and Families, Chairman Kelly (141) reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Children and Families, to which was referred **HB 81**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (9): Gragg, Hausman, Johnson (12), Jones, Kelley (127), Kelly (141), Lewis (6), McGaugh and Unsicker

Noes (0)

Absent (1): Terry

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Children and Families, to which was referred **HB 913** and **HB 428**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass with House Committee Substitute** by the following vote:

Ayes (9): Gragg, Hausman, Johnson (12), Jones, Kelley (127), Kelly (141), Lewis (6), McGaugh and Unsicker

Noes (0)

Absent (1): Terry

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Children and Families, to which was referred **HB 1010**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (9): Gragg, Hausman, Johnson (12), Jones, Kelley (127), Kelly (141), Lewis (6), McGaugh and Unsicker

Noes (0)

Absent (1): Terry

Committee on Conservation and Natural Resources, Chairman Sassmann reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Conservation and Natural Resources, to which was referred **HB 475**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass with House Committee Substitute** by the following vote:

Ayes (14): Bonacker, Brown (87), Burton, Diehl, Farnan, Haley, Justus, Knight, Mayhew, Sassmann, Stephens, Taylor (48), Walsh Moore and Woods

Noes (0)

Absent (0)

Committee on Emerging Issues, Chairman Hardwick reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Emerging Issues, to which was referred **HB 700** and **HB 445**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass with House Committee Substitute** by the following vote:

Ayes (9): Davidson, Diehl, Farnan, Haffner, Hardwick, Hinman, Hurlbert, Jones and Schnelting

Noes (4): Aune, Gallick, Johnson (12) and Mann

Present (1): Smith (46)

Absent (0)

Committee on Health and Mental Health Policy, Chairman Stephens reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Health and Mental Health Policy, to which was referred **HB 117**, **HB 343** and **HB 1091**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass with House Committee Substitute** by the following vote:

Ayes (14): Amato, Appelbaum, Clemens, Cook, Davis, Doll, Griffith, Kelley (127), Lewis (25), Peters, Schwadron, Stephens, Thomas and Wright

Noes (0)

Absent (0)

Special Committee on Homeland Security, Chairman Schnelting reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Special Committee on Homeland Security, to which was referred **HCR 11**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (6): Allen, Cook, Houx, Marquart, Schnelting and Schulte

Noes (1): Walsh Moore

Present (1): Barnes

Absent (2): Knight and Phifer

Mr. Speaker: Your Special Committee on Homeland Security, to which was referred **HB 178, HB 179 and HB 401**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass with House Committee Substitute** by the following vote:

Ayes (8): Allen, Barnes, Cook, Houx, Marquart, Schnelting, Schulte and Walsh Moore

Noes (0)

Absent (2): Knight and Phifer

Special Committee on Urban Issues, Chairman Sharp (37) reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Special Committee on Urban Issues, to which was referred **HB 930, HB 361 and HB 326**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass with House Committee Substitute** by the following vote:

Ayes (5): Anderson, Banderman, Casteel, Coleman and Sharp (37)

Noes (0)

Absent (2): Cupps and Davidson

Committee on Veterans, Chairman Griffith reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Veterans, to which was referred **HB 132**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass** by the following vote:

Ayes (11): Atchison, Barnes, Billington, Bromley, Gray, Griffith, Hardwick, Peters, Pouche, Schulte and Seitz

Noes (0)

Absent (3): Bland Manlove, Fountain Henderson and Morse

Committee on Ways and Means, Chairman McGirl reporting:

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Ways and Means, to which was referred **HB 356**, begs leave to report it has examined the same and recommends that it **Do Pass with House Committee Substitute** by the following vote:

Ayes (11): Bland Manlove, Chappell, Gray, Hudson, Lovasco, McGirl, Phifer, Smith (155), Taylor (84), Titus and Wright

Noes (0)

Absent (3): Casteel, Hicks and Thompson

COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS

February 28, 2023

Ms. Dana Rademan Miller
Chief Clerk
Missouri House of Representatives
State Capitol, Room 310
Jefferson City, MO 65101

Dear Ms. Miller:

I hereby appoint Representative Tim Taylor to the Missouri Emergency Response Commission.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact my office.

Sincerely,

/s/ Dean Plocher
Speaker of the House

ADJOURNMENT

On motion of Representative Patterson, the House adjourned until 1:00 p.m., Wednesday, March 1, 2023.

COMMITTEE HEARINGS

AGRICULTURE POLICY

Thursday, March 2, 2023, 8:00 AM, House Hearing Room 6.
Executive session will be held: HB 576, HB 1023

BUDGET

Wednesday, March 1, 2023, 11:00 AM, House Hearing Room 3.
Public hearing will be held: HB 17, HB 18, HB 19
Subcommittee Chair presentations of adopted amendments in appropriations subcommittees.
Budget presentation by the Office of Administration on HB 17, HB 18, and HB 19. Public testimony will be taken.

CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Wednesday, March 1, 2023, 4:00 PM or upon adjournment (whichever is later),
House Hearing Room 7.

Executive session will be held: HB 779

Removed HB 142, HB 774 and HB 631.

AMENDED

CORRECTIONS AND PUBLIC INSTITUTIONS

Wednesday, March 1, 2023, 4:00 PM or upon adjournment (whichever is later),
House Hearing Room 1.

Public hearing will be held: HB 1133, HB 1028

Executive session will be held: HB 196

Removed HB 693, HB 550, HB 420, HB 372, HB 382, and HB 119.

AMENDED

CRIME PREVENTION AND PUBLIC SAFETY

Thursday, March 2, 2023, 8:00 AM, House Hearing Room 7.

Public hearing will be held: HB 36, HB 571, HB 1024

Executive session will be held: HB 725, HB 766

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Wednesday, March 1, 2023, 8:15 AM, House Hearing Room 1.

Public hearing will be held: HB 939

Executive session will be held: HB 675

ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION

Wednesday, March 1, 2023, 8:00 AM, House Hearing Room 3.

Public hearing will be held: HB 106, HB 634, HB 482, HB 627

Executive session will be held: HB 809

Room change.

CORRECTED

EMERGING ISSUES

Wednesday, March 1, 2023, 4:00 PM or upon adjournment (whichever is later),
House Hearing Room 6.

Public hearing will be held: HB 555, HB 532, HB 751, HB 1120

Executive session will be held: HB 262

Added HB 262.

AMENDED

GOVERNMENT EFFICIENCY AND DOWNSIZING

Wednesday, March 1, 2023, 8:00 AM, House Hearing Room 6.

Public hearing will be held: HB 782, HB 471, HB 1145, HB 995

HIGHER EDUCATION

Wednesday, March 1, 2023, 4:00 PM or upon adjournment (whichever is later),
House Hearing Room 5.

Executive session will be held: HB 76

CANCELLED

INSURANCE POLICY

Wednesday, March 1, 2023, 9:00 AM, House Hearing Room 5.

Public hearing will be held: HB 46

Executive session will be held: HB 1019

JOINT COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT

Wednesday, March 1, 2023, 8:00 AM, Joint Hearing Room (117).

Chair and Vice Chair elections.

Presentation of the 2023 JCPER Annual Report for Plan Year 2021.

Quarterly investment reporting.

RULES - ADMINISTRATIVE OVERSIGHT

Wednesday, March 1, 2023, 4:30 PM or upon adjournment (whichever is later),
House Hearing Room 4.

Executive session will be held: HB 703, HCS HBs 802, 807 & 886

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

RULES - LEGISLATIVE OVERSIGHT

Wednesday, March 1, 2023, 11:30 AM, House Hearing Room 4.

Executive session will be held: HCS HB 668

Executive session may be held on any matter referred to the committee.

SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON ELECTION CONTESTS

Wednesday, March 1, 2023, 10:00 AM, House Hearing Room 5.

Public hearing will be held: HEC 1

Parties or their counsel are invited to provide testimony.

TRANSPORTATION ACCOUNTABILITY

Thursday, March 2, 2023, 8:00 AM, House Hearing Room 1.

Executive session will be held: HB 778, HB 519, HB 520

TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE

Wednesday, March 1, 2023, 10:00 AM, House Hearing Room 7.

Public hearing will be held: HB 424, HB 711

Executive session will be held: HB 746

UTILITIES

Wednesday, March 1, 2023, 10:00 AM, House Hearing Room 1.

Public hearing will be held: HB 992

Executive session will be held: HB 479, HB 647, HB 651

WAYS AND MEANS

Thursday, March 2, 2023, 8:00 AM, House Hearing Room 5.
Executive session will be held: HB 1078

WORKFORCE AND INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT

Wednesday, March 1, 2023, 10:00 AM, House Hearing Room 6.
Public hearing will be held: HB 733, HB 960
Executive session will be held: HB 316, HB 657
Informational meeting regarding the Department of Corrections.

HOUSE CALENDAR

THIRTY-FIRST DAY, WEDNESDAY, MARCH 1, 2023

HOUSE JOINT RESOLUTIONS FOR SECOND READING

HJR 65

HOUSE BILLS FOR SECOND READING

HB 1293 through HB 1347

HOUSE JOINT RESOLUTIONS FOR PERFECTION

HCS HJR 37 - Mayhew

HOUSE BILLS FOR PERFECTION

HB 70 - Dinkins

HCS HBs 133 & 583 - Hudson

HCS HBs 702, 53, 213, 216, 306 & 359, (3 hours 30 minutes total debate on Perfection) - Christ

HB 202 - Francis

HCS HB 461 - Riggs

HCS HB 909 - Haffner

HB 585 - Owen

HCS HB 454 - Coleman

HOUSE BILLS FOR PERFECTION - INFORMAL

HCS HB 253 - Pollitt

HOUSE BILLS FOR PERFECTION - CONSENT

(02/22/2023)

HB 402 - Henderson

HOUSE BILLS FOR THIRD READING

HB 730 - Brown (16)

ACTIONS PURSUANT TO ARTICLE IV, SECTION 27

HCS HB 3001 - Smith (163)
CCS SS SCS HCS HB 3002 - Smith (163)
CCS SS SCS HCS HB 3003 - Smith (163)
CCS SCS HCS HB 3004 - Smith (163)
CCS SCS HCS HB 3005 - Smith (163)
CCS SCS HCS HB 3006 - Smith (163)
CCS SCS HCS HB 3007 - Smith (163)
CCS SS SCS HCS HB 3008 - Smith (163)
CCS SCS HCS HB 3009 - Smith (163)
CCS SS SCS HCS HB 3010 - Smith (163)
CCS SS SCS HCS HB 3011 - Smith (163)
CCS SS SCS HCS HB 3012 - Smith (163)
CCS SCS HCS HB 3013 - Smith (163)
SCS HCS HB 3017 - Smith (163)
SCS HCS HB 3018 - Smith (163)
SCS HCS HB 3019 - Smith (163)
SS SCS HCS HB 3020 - Smith (163)